
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2025 3 
3:30 P.M. 4 

    5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, May 20, 2025 at 3:30 p.m. at the 6 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.     7 
  8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 9 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 10 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yCbMg_T-_vA 11 
   12 
[ATTENDANCE]    13 
Elected Body      14 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)    15 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray      16 
Councilmember Brett Gantt    17 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman      18 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth (arrived late see note below)  19 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey    20 
     21 
Town Staff      22 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg      23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis      24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John      25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone     26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe      27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman      28 
    29 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.     30 
    31 
[COMMENCMENT]     32 
     33 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:33 p.m., welcomed everyone in 34 
attendance, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He said it was his understanding from the Town 35 
Clerk that new, cordless-wireless microphones were included in the proposed fiscal year 36 
budget and he looked forward to having those installed.  He said it is a priority for members 37 
of the public to be able to hear on the livestream but also for the sound to be heard clearly in 38 
the back of the meeting space on the 3rd Floor.   39 

Town Clerk Coleman said that was correct and those should be installed in time for 40 
the August work session, following the Council’s summer break.    41 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yCbMg_T-_vA


DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 2 of 24 
 

Mayor Gilbert said the Town Manager will lead us through the work session items and 1 
that the agenda was full.   2 

Town Manager Vosburg said that the main topics for today’s work session were 3 
specifically related to public safety and that both the Fire Chief Tim Herman and Police Chief 4 
Ryan Johansen would be providing a presentation on various topics, projects, and 5 
initiatives.    6 
  7 
[FIRE STATION LOCATION STUDY RESULTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS]   8 
  9 

Fire Chief Tim Herman provided the following PowerPoint presentation.    10 
CLERK NOTE: Throughout the presentation questions were asked by members of the 11 
elected body.  Those questions and the staff’s corresponding responses are denoted below 12 
each PowerPoint slide as applicable. 13 
[SLIDE 1] 14 

 15 
[SLIDE 2] 16 

 17 
 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 3 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the gaps were reflected in the white areas between 3 
the blue and the green areas. 4 
 Chief Herman said that is correct and there were maps that would show more detail 5 
about what this means.  6 
[SLIDE 4] 7 

 8 
[SLIDE 5 (VIDEO)] 9 

Chief Herman showed a video to show his vision for Apex Fire Department. 10 
During this slide, the Mayor, Town Councilmembers, Town Staff, and members of the public, 11 
both in-person and online, watched a video on how the Town’s Fire Station locations are 12 
determined, how the number of fire engines are determined for a particular station, and 13 
much more.  The focus topics covered were Fire Station Distribution, Fire Station 14 
Concentration, and Fire Service Reliability.  15 
 16 

  17 
  



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 4 of 24 
 

Councilmember Killingsworth arrived at the meeting at 3:43 p.m. 1 
[SLIDE 6] 2 

 3 
[SLIDE 7] 4 

 5 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 5 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 8] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 9] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 10] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 6 of 24 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the colors meant 1 
 Chief Herman said if an area is not covered by blue, it would be a response time of 2 
over 5 minutes. 3 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if deploying 17 firefighters is a national standard 4 
and if the equipment types that are deployed are also standard. 5 

Chief Herman said that was correct. 6 
Councilmember Mahaffey asked how mutual aid works in practice. 7 
Chief Herman explained that within the Cary, Apex, Morrisville area each fire 8 

department dispatches units seamlessly within areas close to each other.  9 
Councilmember Mahaffey said that he understood the dispatch but wanted to know 10 

about response if another incident arises after a significant response 11 
Chief Herman said dispatch is County-wide, so if a significant portion of Apex’s fire 12 

department was on a call for a large incident, Holly Springs personnel could move up into 13 
Apex to be ready to respond to additional incidents here if necessary. He said they could also 14 
move around units from other Apex stations to provide coverage. 15 

Councilmember Gantt asked why New Hill doesn’t have any orange.  16 
Chief Herman said that it’s because there’s just one engine at Station 2 and the next 17 

closest station is #5 with an engine and a ladder. He said those can arrive to the area within 8 18 
minutes, but that would still be less than 17 people. 19 

Councilmember Gantt said that there were multiple stations that work in these areas. 20 
He asked if any stations by themselves have 17. 21 

Chief Herman said the most a station has is 8 personnel, and the minimum staffing is 22 
7. 23 
[SLIDE 11] 24 

 25 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what the white area meant. 26 
 Chief Herman said that was an area that would never be developed, such as 27 
protected land, water, etc.  28 
  29 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 7 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 13] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 14] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 8 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 
Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked about the addition of stations in the surrounding 3 

communities. 4 
Chief Herman said that Holly Springs had recently opened a new one and there were 5 

more planned in the next 5 years. He said that Apex’s Fire area may be growing soon with 6 
County realignment, and it may increase Apex’s cost share some. 7 

Councilmember Gantt asked if there were any County fire stations. 8 
Chief Herman said no, and they contract with all surrounding municipalities, including 9 

the City of Raleigh and Cary. 10 
 11 

[SLIDE 16] 12 

 13 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 9 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 18] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 19] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 10 of 24 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if adding more staff would change the 17-person 1 
target or the number of vehicles traveling. 2 
 Chief Herman said it would change the number of vehicles traveling. 3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked about what that meant for additions. 4 

Chief Herman said for a goal of maintaining 4 staff per engine, it is standard to hire 5 5 
for that engine. He said this would be an addition of 15 staff.  6 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if these numbers included the current year’s 7 
request 8 
 Chief Herman said no, that would be in addition to this year’s request.  9 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that to that point, the six additional positions this year 10 
are to help maintain the current minimum standard. 11 
 Chief Herman said that more staffing allows time and flexibility for staff to utilize their 12 
time off, FMLA, or Workers’ compensation. 13 
[SLIDE 20] 14 

 15 
[SLIDE 21] 16 

  17 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 11 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 22] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 23] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 24] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 12 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 25] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked about if recommendation was that future 3 
station 7 would need to be expanded.  4 
 Chief Herman said that it was recommended that Station 7 would be a 3 to 4-bay fire 5 
station, which would hold 2 companies. 6 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if there was space for this recommendation. 7 
 Chief Herman said that there was space, and it would be built and be ready for two 8 
fire companies. 9 
 Town Manager Vosburg said it would be ready for expansion to 2 companies when 10 
needed. 11 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked did the land have the ability for expansion in 12 
the future if needed. 13 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that it would be appropriate for the maximum of what is 14 
being recommended.   15 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what fire station Apex has as a two-company fire 16 
station currently. 17 
 Chief Herman said station #5 and #4. 18 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 13 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 26] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what was driving the 3x increase in space 3 
requirements. 4 
 Chief Herman said the space they have is already full with current positions without 5 
conference room and lobby space, and with the additional position needs it adds space 6 
needs as well. 7 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if there is a possible opportunity to build a station with 8 
Cary. 9 
 Chief Herman said that Cary was reaching the district line fairly well and he reiterated 10 
that all areas aren’t going to be filled in completely, and this was a fairly large area. He said 11 
that if a new station was built that it would take care of most of the area.  12 
[SLIDE 27] 13 

 14 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 14 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 28] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked what was north of this and where was the main road.  3 
 Chief Herman said in front to the north.  4 
[SLIDE 29] 5 

 6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if Wake County would lead the design and 7 
construction of the new building. 8 
 Chief Herman said that that would be asked at the meeting that was being held May 9 
21st, but prior discussions had been that Apex would own the building and that would usually 10 
mean that Apex would lead in design and construction.  He gave an example of Wake 11 
County’s recent partnerships like this. 12 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked for clarification on if the ask was to delay Fire 13 
Station 7, or to provide additional resources to build this with Wake County. 14 
 Chief Herman said that it would be up to what was wanted by Council, and this was 15 
the question.  16 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 15 of 24 
 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that the next meeting information would help make 1 
the decisions. He said that if Wake is heavily invested in this and it is an offer that goes away, 2 
that’s something the Council would have to decide.   3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked about  4 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about a scenario in which station 2 was 5 
redesigned to be a 2-company station. 6 
 Chief Herman said that scenario was not modeled here.  7 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that Station 2 looks like a shed and asked what was 8 
inside. 9 
 Chief Herman said that it is turn out gear storage, workout rooms, and other things 10 
that are needed. 11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the ballpark amount of cost share for a new 12 
station with Wake County would be $10 million. 13 
 Chief Herman said that would probably be close, as the total cost of a new station 14 
today would be around $12 million.  15 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said he would like to see more about the budget for this. 16 
 Chief Herman said at the meeting that he could get more of an estimate. 17 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that Wake is going to build this regardless of if 18 
Apex is part of this. 19 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that there were 2 stations at least that were going to 20 
be replaced in the next 10 years, and those could be more expensive that this opportunity for 21 
the town. 22 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked Chief Herman to ask if they had programmed 23 
the money and if not, would they consider delaying this project a year or two.  24 
 Chief Herman said that they have already delayed this and wanted to start in FY 2026. 25 
He said they will know more soon. 26 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if they could own the building with Apex doing a 27 
35% cost share. 28 
 Chief Herman said they seemed to want Apex to own the building in this scenario, 29 
but they could discuss that. 30 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if this would be better for the town to have this versus 31 
two separate stations in the long term. 32 

Chief Herman said yes. He said this would help them “call share” and it would save 33 
taxpayer money 34 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if it is one building and parking. 35 
Chief Herman said that they own this, and Apex leases and it would be an option to 36 

purchase this so that the complex could be built.   37 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 16 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 30] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 31] 3 

 4 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if more fire stations were built where training is for everyone.    5 
 Chief Herman said that there is training in various locations. He said that there is the 6 
Wake County Fire Training Center, he said they also travel to Sanford Community College, 7 
Central Carolina Community College and Fayetteville Tech to name some.  8 
  Mayor Gilbert asked if there was training while firefighters were on their shift. 9 
 Chief Herman said that 95% of Apex fire training is on duty. 10 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that a big point is the ISO and that research shows that 11 
it is in the top 1%, and that it is huge and asked that this to be kept in mind while making 12 
decisions. 13 
  14 
[BIANNUAL PUBLIC SAFETY UPDATE - POLICE]   15 
 16 

Police Chief Ryan Johansen provided the following PowerPoint presentation.  17 
   18 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 17 of 24 
 

CLERK NOTE: Throughout the presentation questions were asked by members of the 1 
elected body.  Those questions and the staff’s corresponding responses are denoted below 2 
each PowerPoint slide as applicable.  3 
[SLIDE 1] 4 

 5 
[SLIDE 2] 6 

 7 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 18 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 19 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 20 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what the recommended ratio would be for a Town 3 
the size of Apex. 4 
  Chief Johansen said that the short answer is that there is not a recommended ratio. 5 
He said that there is no one that is going to recommend a standard for staffing a Police 6 
Department. He said that he is an advocate for a staffing model, and he would be working to 7 
bring that to Council. 8 
[SLIDE 10] 9 

 10 
  11 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 21 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked how many positions are currently open. 3 
 Chief Johansen said that technically zero because there are seven new officers 4 
currently in some stage of the backgrounding process to be hired, but they are not actually 5 
on duty as of now.  6 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if that was from recruiting catching up since Chief 7 
Johansen started.  8 
 Chief Johansen said that when he came, he believes there were 14 vacancies.  9 
[SLIDE 12] 10 

 11 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 22 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 14] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 15] 5 

 6 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 23 of 24 
 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 
 Chief Johansen said that he appreciated everyone being so patient with him. 3 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked him and congratulated him on his 120 days. 4 
 5 
   6 

Mayor Gilbert called for a recess at 5:13 p.m. and announced the meeting was in 7 
recess.   8 

Mayor Gilbert reconvened the meeting at 5:21 p.m. and said that additional items 9 
were to be discussed in closed session.   10 
  11 
[CLOSED SESSION]   12 
  13 

A motion was made by Councilmember Zegerman, and seconded by Mayor Pro-14 
Tempore Gray, to enter into closed session pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(4) and NCGS 15 
§143-318.11(a)(6). 16 
  17 

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0)  18 
  19 
Council entered into closed session at 5:22 p.m.   20 
  21 
 CS1 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert    22 
NCGS §143-318.11(a)(4):   23 
“To discuss matters relating to the location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 24 
the area served by the public body, including agreement on a tentative list of economic 25 
development incentives that may be offered by the public body in negotiations.”  26 
  27 
CS2 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert    28 
NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6):   29 



DRAFT MINUTES | MAY 20, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 24 of 24 
 

“To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 1 
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 2 
or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 3 
grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee.”  4 
  5 
Council returned to open session at 7:17 p.m.  6 
  7 
[ADJOURNMENT]     8 
     9 

With no additional business being presented before the Council, Mayor Gilbert 10 
adjourned the meeting at 7:18 p.m.   11 
   12 
    13 

Jacques K. Gilbert    14 
Apex, Mayor    15 

   16 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC      17 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council      18 
     19 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman     20 
     21 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2025.     22 
  23 

 24 


